ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 27, 2003
8:00 a. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG

Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Public Safety

W1 liam Tandeske - Juneau
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REG STER

W LLI AM TANDESKE, Conmi ssi oner

Department of Public Safety

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointed conm ssioner of
Department of Public Safety.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-14, SIDE A
Nunmber 0001

t he

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 27, 2003



CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m Representati ves Hol m
Seat on, Dahl strom G uenberg, and Weyhrauch were present at the
call to order. Representatives Lynn and Berkowitz arrived as
the neeting was in progress.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG

Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Public Safety

Number 0117

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that the commttee would consider the
appoi nt nent of WIliam Tandeske as conm ssioner of the
Department of Public Safety (DPS).

Number 0150

W LLI AM TANDESKE, Conmmi ssioner, Departnent of Public Safety,
explained his history with DPS: joining law enforcenent in
1973 and becom ng an Al aska State Trooper after he turned 21;
being pronoted to corporal in 1981, to sergeant in 1983, to
first sergeant in 1988, and to lieutenant in 1991, in rural
enforcenment and then serving as deputy detachnment commander for
the Interior and the Fairbanks area; being brought back to
Anchorage to establish the permts-and-licensing function when
DPS was inplenenting sex-offender registration and conceal ed-
carry permts; taking back responsibility for judicial services,
energency operations, and commercial vehicle enforcenent; being
pronoted to captain and taking over admnistrative services,
including nedia relations; and being pronoted to mjor and
becoming deputy director of the Dvision of Alaska State
Troopers in 1995, a post he held until his retirement June 30,
1999, a few weeks shy of 26 years with DPS.

COM SSIONER TANDESKE said he traveled extensively around
Al aska, working in pretty much every function; is famliar with
the departnent's budget processes and vehicle processes, for
exanpl e; and is a graduate of the Federal Bureau of
I nvestigation (FBI) national acadeny, 162nd sessi on.

Number 0724
COW SSI ONER TANDESKE referred to an e-mail he'd sent to his
enpl oyees to show his philosophy and where he intends to take

t he departnent. He explained that he'd provided a copy to the
commttee because he thinks it speaks to questions the commttee

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 27, 2003



may have regarding his philosophical viewoints. He enphasi zed
the inportance of recognizing all the departnent's enployees,
not just the high-profile ones in uniform for what they do and
contri bute. He said the loyalty, integrity, and courage
referenced in the e-mail apply to everybody, and those words are
on the side of all the trooper cars; whatever is done is done
well, professionally, and for the right reasons. And the
departnment is responsible to its constituents.

Number 0954

COW SSI ONER  TANDESKE, regarding his approach to problem
solving, said he feels very strongly that [the departnent]
should give [a problem its best shot, in any case, to nake
t hi ngs happen appropriately. He offered his belief that the
responsibility of DPS and all governnent entities is to make the
system work better. He indicated it isn't an issue regarding
st at ut es. He also highlighted fundanental fairness as an issue
for both [the departnent's] constituents and its enpl oyees.

COWMM SSI ONER TANDESKE told the commttee the baseline of how he
operates is a foundational approach. For exanple, currently DPS
is taking a total look to determne its mssion and focus, and
to decide what structure wll best acconplish that, versus
utilizing a reactive "Band-Ai d approach.”

COWM SSI ONER TANDESKE said he was only partially surprised to
conme back after 3.5 years of retirement and be attenpting to
answer sone of the sane questions from four or five years ago.
He said there are systens in place in regard to information that
the departnent knows it will be asked for every year, and he
questioned why it is so hard to cone up wth that infornmation.
He added, "That's part of that fundanental kind of thing - that
we don't have to go in the panic node once a year [over] things
that we knew were com ng."

Nunber 1233

COWM SSI ONER  TANDESKE enphasized the inportance of not
forgetting that "we all started on graveyard shift, wth Tuesday
and Wednesday off." \Wen people get into the position of making
policies, they need to renenber that those policies are there to
serve their constituents and to support their enployees. He
opi ned that once a person forgets where he/she started and stops
wondering what [the people working at all levels] are thinking
about regarding policies, then it becones a credibility issue as
wel | as an operational issue.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 27, 2003



COWMWM SSI ONER TANDESKE said he hears a |ot about DPS s vessels
and airplanes, but the core of the departnent is its enployees.
He said the departnent wll support all its enployees, as well
as hold themall accountable, starting with the comm ssioner.

Nunber 1342

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM rel ated his understandi ng that Comm ssioner
Tandeske worked on the original "conceal ed-carry” |egislation.
He asked how he thinks the program has progressed over the
years.

COWM SSI ONER TANDESKE replied that to date, he has asked the
"conceal ed-carry-permt folks" to send him a packet as if he
were sonebody wal king in the door, so he can |ook at what an
i ndi vi dual sees and can consider how cunbersone the process is
and whether it's working. He noted that he has been away from
it anhile and is interested. He stated concern that whatever
[ DPS] does, it should protect reciprocity with other states. He
said he personally doesn't have a concealed-carry permt [in
Al aska], but does own a place in Arizona, where he my want to
carry a permt.

Nunmber 1445

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked Conmi ssioner Tandeske if he was
famliar with SB 242, which relates to reciprocity. He note
that Washington State and Owegon are comonly visited by
Al askans, and asked what could be done to get themon that |ist.

COW SSI ONER TANDESKE r esponded that he wasn't aware this was an
i ssue. He suggested the states could be contacted to find out
what inpedinents to reciprocity exist.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked Conm ssioner Tandeske if he was
famliar with HB 102, the "open conceal ed-carry |aw. "

COW SSI ONER TANDESKE answered that he has seen a draft, but
didn't have an observati on about it.

Number 1501

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked Conmi ssi oner Tandeske for his thoughts
regarding registering the DNA of sex offenders, for exanple.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 27, 2003



COMM SSI ONER TANDESKE replied that he feels very strongly about
t he subject. He said he'd had a very enlightening briefing on
DNA issues this week, a presentation from "our |ab personnel”
that he suggested many | egislators would be seeing. He said the
possibilities are trenmendous, and indicated it requires a
dat abase. He noted that on a national |evel, as the databases
i ncrease, the solving of cases is skyrocketing. He comment ed
that the lab personnel are excited about what they do and the
advances they are making.

COWM SSI ONER TANDESKE noted that, nationally, people who are
"getting hits on many crines" cone from a wde variety of
crim nal backgrounds; sex offenders don't always stick to just
sex of fenses. He said he thinks the conmttee will hear that
states with very broad requirenents in ternms of convicted
crimnal offenses have a very nice "solve" rate.

Nunber 1672

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said, as chair of the House Special
Committee on Fisheries, he has been contacted by people
concerned about "mssion creep” or "mssion change.” He
mentioned so-called brown-shirt fish and gane officers and the
training going away from that area of expertise and into the
regul ar trooper category. He clarified that the concern is that
expertise in the mssion of the fish and ganme enforcenent
of ficers mght be |ost.

COW SSI ONER TANDESKE responded that he has heard from a | ot of
constituents regarding that issue. He said it is a broader
i ssue concerning what belongs in the departnent, what doesn't,
what the departnent's focus is, and how it  builds its
infrastructure. He said the Al aska State Troopers and the "fish
and wldlife state troopers" are part of the bigger issue,
al though this is the one issue getting the nost attention.

COM SSI ONER TANDESKE noted that "fish and wldlife state
troopers" are trained as state troopers. He explained that
there is a conponent of the public safety acadeny that "takes
them to specialties, whereas the traditional blue shirts ... go
a different direction.” He said he can understand where sonme of
the anxiety is comng from because the issue being discussed is
whet her those two enforcenent divisions will nerge.

Nunmber 1805

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 27, 2003



COMM SSI ONER TANDESKE referred to a "foundational approach” - an
inventory of aircraft, vessels, and vehicles to determ ne what
is being done with them and to determ ne cost-effectiveness. He
said it all revolves around the best use of resources. He
added, "Whatever we do will protect that expertise.” He noted
that the bottom line is the budget. He said he would rather
have "nore folks at the ground |level providing service than a
superstructure at the top." He said the easiest thing would be
to follow the status quo, but sonething nmust give at sonme point.

COWMM SSI ONER TANDESKE said the issue is being addressed and the
expertise will not be |ost. He indicated there is a clear
expectation, and "on sone level it's happening now" He said,
"These are all comm ssioned state troopers we're tal king about.
And when we have ... a homcide or we need backup on a donestic
violence or we ... need a roadbl ock because a convicted rapist
just escaped from a prison, everybody conmes to a state trooper
regardl ess of what color that uniformis.” He enphasi zed t hat
it has to be that way because DPS will never have the resources
to do everything that needs done.

COWM SSI ONER TANDESKE noted that when he was a trooper nmjor, he
sent four troopers to Bristol Bay every June and July for the
Bristol Bay fishery because the mission required it, even though

he couldn't afford to give up four "blue shirts.” He said these
kinds of issues all start with |eadership and remarked, "If the
| eadership doesn't allow 'mission creep,” we'll be okay." He
concluded that he isn't confortable saying, "That's the way

we' ve always done it. How nuch noney are you going to give ne?"
He said [DPS] nust |l ook at howit will get the job done.

Nunber 1974

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered the exanple of the Kodiak
fisheries' total restructuring from a "w de-open, flare-open
kind of thing" to a slow fishery; he said he thinks it was "four
vessel s and airplanes, and everything else, out to enforce a
fishery that is now market-controlled, and there isn't really an

enforcenent issue.” He added, "In addition to fairness,
accountability, and those things, | think the reasonabl eness of
where the 'forestructure' goes is going to be an inportant
conponent, from what [|'ve seen, from ... the fisheries end of
things.” He said he hoped Conm ssioner Tandeske woul d keep that
in mnd.

COWMM SSI ONER TANDESKE r esponded, "All that is being | ooked at."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 27, 2003



Number 2050

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked Comm ssioner Tandeske if he would
contenpl ate hel ping with negotiations that would enabl e Al askans
to carry firearnms across Canada, either from Juneau or going to
and fromthe Lower 48.

COWMWM SSI ONER TANDESKE answered that the issue is difficult
because the Canadians are "pretty tight" on that issue. He said
the troopers have had issues crossing the border with weapons
t hensel ves. He said if it were feasible, he'd certainly be
willing to facilitate that. He added that he is well aware of
t he nunber of Al askans who cone and go across the border.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked that Conm ssioner Tandeske |end
what ever help he can to those who woul d be, perhaps, in a better
position to help negotiate [the issue].

Number 2110

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN said he has a particular interest in
honel and security, particularly for the State of Al aska. He
asked Conm ssi oner Tandeske for his coments.

COWMM SSI ONER TANDESKE noted that the departnent is working with
the Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs regarding what

its role will be. He said the nature of DPS is such that it
will be at the forefront of whatever happens because it is
organi zed to be easily adaptable. He nentioned an issue that

arose about two weeks ago, during a neeting with the honel and
security group, regarding whether or not to reenploy the
checkpoint on the Dalton Hi ghway. He said he could ve had that
in place very shortly if need be.

COW SSI ONER TANDESKE told the commttee that a rapist escaped
from the Palnmer correctional facility and was caught within an
hour . He noted that the only three state troopers on [duty] in
the valley were there and, fortunately, a helicopter was readily
avai |l abl e. He said, "You don't realize how short of people you
are until you get into an arnmed standoff."” He said three
troopers don't go very far in those situations. He menti oned
the three teans in Kenai Peninsula, the Mtanuska Valley, and
Fai rbanks, and the fish and wldlife troopers, and he said, "W
all becone troopers when certain things happen.”

Nunber 2242

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 27, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked Comm ssioner Tandeske what top three
pi eces of legislation in the House he would urge to be sponsored
to assist the mssion of public safety.

COWMWM SSI ONER  TANDESKE answered that one would be DNA
| egi slation, which he thinks [would benefit] |aw enforcenent
st at ewi de. Anot her would be flexibility surrounding user-fee
i ssues. He nentioned budgets and restraints and said there are
things DPS is statutorily mandated to do that cost noney. For
exanple, there have been perhaps up to 39 avalanche-related
deaths since 1997, a significant issue that needs to be
addr essed. He opined that the nost valuable resource he has is
his enpl oyees at the ground | evel who provide the service.

Nunber 2347
REPRESENTATIVE LYNN said he is a strong supporter of public

safety. He asked Conmi ssioner Tandeske to |et him know what he
can do to assist.

Nunmber 2365

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said he has seen "m ssion creep" when
the | egislature passes new | aws and appropriations. He said he
has al ways comented that "what you're doing is short-funding
the troopers every tine we pass a new law" He asked

Comm ssi oner Tandeske how many troopers he has and how nany are
on duty at any one tine.

COWM SSI ONER TANDESKE answered that he believes the Division of
Al aska State Troopers has 251 "from top to bottom"™ and the
Division of Fish and WIldlife Protection has 91, including the

col onel and the mgjors. For exanple, on a statew de basis on
graveyard shift tonight, there probably aren't nore than 15.
The 24-hour posts will be in the Fairbanks, Matanuska-Susitna,

and Kenai Peninsula areas. He noted that the estinmate was based
on his experience from four years ago, but said he'd be
surprised if it had changed much since then.

Nunmber 2449
REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ comented that he has heard sone
unfortunate nunbers regarding "solve" rates, particularly on the

Kenai Peni nsul a. He nentioned single-digit rates and asked if
they are accurate.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 27, 2003



COWM SSI ONER TANDESKE answered that he hasn't |ooked at solve
rates, but suspects that's true. He said this issue is part of
readdressing what DPS is doing and how it's being done. For
exanple, there are currently three investigators, retired police
officers, working in Alaska on cold cases; he believes two
previously unsolved homcides wll go to grand jury soon. He
also noted that a patrol sergeant has been taken out of the
patrol function in Palnmer and is working property crime with APD
[ Anchorage Police Departnent]; they are about to close out
approximately 32 burglary-theft-type cases, with two or three
def endants, that have stretched from Anchorage to Tal keet na.

COWM SSI ONER  TANDESKE highlighted the question of how DPS

approaches issues: whether it should continue to use three
troopers to respond after the fact and do reports, or should
i nvesti gate. He explained that there is a huge difference
between taking a report and investigating a crine. He said,
"That is part of our revisiting of how we do business, and those
are exanples, | think, where we will be doing better.™

Number 2550

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said he has heard a conplaint from
other states that the federal governnment has allocated a fair
anount of noney for honeland security, but, as far as public
safety and | aw enforcenent, a lot of those funds have cone from
exi sting |law enforcenent prograns. He asked if that is true in
Al aska.

COWM SSI ONER TANDESKE said he thinks there is sone truth to
t hat . He said, from his departnent's standpoint, he did not
submt sone honeland security issues that he'd inherited from
the last administration, based on "sone of the scenarios | was
working." He said, "I know at this point that I'mwlling to be
providing a position to the honeland security office, and past
that, 1'm not sure.” He added, "But, clearly, there is the
potential of inpacting our departnent.”

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked, "Mre for honeland security than
traditional ?"

COWM SSI ONER TANDESKE said it's yet to be determ ned, but the
potential is there.

Nunber 2614

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 27, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked Conm ssioner Tandeske what his
expectations are for the departnent's budget being considered by
the legislature in the next week.

COWM SSI ONER TANDESKE said it is a noving target. He reported
that the position he has taken is that the one asset he cannot
give up is state troopers. He added, "State troopers are only
as effective as the support they get. When you start having
state troopers doing filing because you don't have clerks,
that's not a good thing either.” He said he does not know what
his final budget will be, but hopes to know that information
when he neets with the chief of staff.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKONTZ referred to Village Public Safety
Oficers (VPSGs) and asked if there would be a continued effort
to expand the nunber of communities that have |aw enforcenent.
He stated his understanding that presently some conmunities have
no | aw enforcenent what soever.

COMM SSI ONER TANDESKE replied that [ DPS] would certainly
[ support] law enforcenent in rural communities, which he feels
strongly about; however, it is yet to be determ ned whether
VPSGs will be the vehicle. Currently, there are 125-147 vill age
police officers in 59 comunities and 76 VPSGs in 75
comunities; sone of those overlap. He noted that DPS has
trained approximately 185 village ©police officers, usi ng
(indisc.) funding. He said DPS has been training [VPSGCs] since
the early 1990s; it isn't sonething the departnent is nandated
to do, but it's done in support of rural Al askan issues. He
reiterated that the departnent's review of its function and
cost-effective budgeting is part of the foundational review it
is currently doing.

Nunber 2740

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ noted the attention given around the
country to the "broken wndow theory of crime" regarding
addressing mnor crinmes and thereby having a larger inpact on
reducing crinme rates. He asked the comm ssioner to coment.

COWM SSI ONER TANDESKE said it certainly has an application in
juvenile issues; when those issues are addressed appropriately
early, perhaps it is possible to keep folks from ending up in
the Cook Inlet Pre-Trial Facility at some point. He said he
thinks that ties into his previously stated comrent regarding
DNA and that people doing crines are also "doing other things."
He said, "If you break the wi ndow and | eave a DNA sanpl e because

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 27, 2003



you cut your hand on it, who knows where that's going to show up
now, or down the road." He added, "I believe that enforcenent
of law and the punitive aspects that come after that is only
part of the equation in terns of addressing crine as a whole

The actual enforcenent of law is not the only means to get to
where we need to be; it's just a conponent of that."

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ nentioned previous conversations wth
Comm ssi oner [ Tandeske] and said he appreciates his comm tnent
to public safety and officer safety; he expressed certainty that

the comm ssioner will find support throughout the |egislature,
and said he hopes he'll have the budget needed to do his job.
Nunber 2844

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked what efforts DPS may be making to
encourage nenbers of mnority groups who live in urban areas to
becone troopers. He noted that his constituent population is
made up of nmany young people, and there is a |lot of
unenpl oynent .

COWM SSI ONER TANDESKE replied that he hasn't reached that |eve

yet in his review of the foundation; however, he nentioned his
experience with the departnent, outreach, and the mlitary as a
source of good candidates. He explained that the issue is about
finding people who not only want to be in |law enforcenment, but
also want to take on the special challenges of being a state

t r ooper. For exanple, if people don't know better, the thought
of being stationed in None is horrifying. He said he tells
people that it wll be the best experience of their [|aw

enforcenent career to work in rural Alaska, neet wth the
el ders, and deal with all the special challenges there.

Nunber 2952

COW SSI ONER  TANDESKE said it is a national issue. He
expl ai ned, "Everyone's looking in the next backyard: New
Mexico's looking in Texas, and Texas is looking in Arizona.
Everyone's looking for qualified people who ... not only are
willing to do the job, but can do the job." He told the

commttee that [DPS] just started an acadeny this week. He said
it is not uncormon to | ose a trooper candidate after three days
in the acadeny; it takes a lot to get through the 12-nonth
process and get hired. He added that it's a daunting task
sifting through 1,000 applicants.

TAPE 03-14, SIDE B

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 27, 2003



Nunber 2977

COMWM SSI ONER TANDESKE said DPS keeps working at it. He
mentioned finding candidates that make it through the process,
the acadeny, and a field-training program He added that

soneone who nmakes it through 20 years as a state trooper has
acconpl i shed sonething pretty special.

Nunber 2949

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if people with any type of conviction on
their record who apply to be state troopers can be considered
for the job.

COWM SSI ONER TANDESKE answered that there are limtations in
terms of the nunmber of years since a felony, for exanple. He
noted that certain statutes or Alaska Police Standards Council
(APSC) rules would prevent |ooking at soneone seriously [as a
candi dat e] . In response to a followup question, he said the
issue is with regard to the kind of conviction, not the fact of
convi ction. He nentioned [a restriction regarding] a felony
conviction within the last 10 years. He said violent crine
i ssues, for exanple, would nake it wunacceptable to issue a
person a badge and gun. He explained, "There are sone things
that, rules aside, would just not nake [a person] acceptable to
our departnent.”

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH not ed that Al aska has the ability to set aside a
conviction, but doesn't expunge a conviction froma record. The
only way to do that is to have a [pardon] fromthe governor. He
asked Comm ssioner Tandeske for his position on the ability of a
court or party to expunge a conviction conpletely from the
record so that it no |onger exists.

COWMM SSI ONER TANDESKE replied that he has such a request on his
desk at present. It is a difficult issue in terns of making a
recommendation to the governor. He noted that the request that
is presently before himis a donestic-violence issue, which is
sonet hing he feels very strongly about.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH cl arified that he wanted to know if Conm ssioner
Tandeske woul d be open to considering an expungenent statute as
a piece of I|egislation. He said it would give sone discretion
to the executive branch and the court system

COWM SSI ONER TANDESKE replied, "Wth a caveat of 'sone things
are just not appropriate,' absolutely.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 27, 2003



Nunmber 2815

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON encouraged Commi ssioner Tandeske to | ook
at how DPS does things and coordinates with other departnents

He said he thinks it is costing approximtely $140,000 a year
for vessels to purchase fuel, "above what it would be if you
were under the state ferry contract.” He said:

For some reason, people have been trying to get this

rolled into the state ferry contract. W have a very

good contract with the fuel distributors, but you're

not included in that. So, you go pay the regular punp

price. So | encourage you to |look at that as a way of
saving quite a bit of noney.

Nunmber 2778
REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked what ki nds of vacanci es exi st.

COMM SSI ONER TANDESKE answered that if the individuals who just
reported to Sitka to the acadeny are counted, there are

currently no vacancies; however, those troopers wll not be
ready to work in the field on their own for at least six to
seven nonths. He indicated that the issue is regarding the

retention of quality people, because it is a challenging job.
He said he'd like a hundred dollars for every tine he worked as
the only trooper in a 100-mle area. There are many parts of
the state where a trooper calls for help and sonebody has to get
out of bed to lend a hand. He said the folks who are out there
[ bei ng state troopers] have his respect.

Nunmber 2695

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM stated that she has had several in-
depth conversations with Comm ssioner Tandeske and is confident
of his ability to perform the functions necessary to be
conmmi ssi oner. She added that she is also pleased that he had
the opportunity to "start fromthe ground up.”

Number 2670

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that a trooper has had a |ot of
publicity recently because of "problens of excess violence.”" He
said he didn't want to get into anything with sensitive |[egal
inplications, but asked if that kind of an issue has caused the
departnment to change its policy.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- February 27, 2003



COWM SSI ONER TANDESKE responded no; the policies in place within

DPS are sound and solid. He said he was recently briefed
regarding that particular case, but was not able to speak in
detail about it. He said he thinks one disadvantage is that "we
wll not, should not, and are not able to litigate issues in the
press"; thus there is a one-sided view of issues "out there."
He said the facts will conme out in due course, and "they are
what they are." He remarked that he feels very confortable with

[DPS s] policies and training and added, "These are things that
happen in a matter of seconds.™

Number 2543

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG referred to honeland security issues
and issues of international inplication, such as Representative
Lynn's previous questions regarding the carrying of weapons
t hrough Canada. He said [DPS] is increasingly interacting with
| ocal law enforcenent, international entities, and national
groups in honeland security and other areas. He asked what
problens the departnent is having and if there is anything the
| egi slature can do to hel p solve those probl ens.

COM SSI ONER TANDESKE replied that the ongoing Alaska Land
Mobile Radio (ALMR) project fits in with what Representative
Gruenberg is saying, in that it brings "all local, state, and
f eder al agencies into one radio interoperability of our
comuni cation systens." He said it is a project that was
started approximately in 1995, and noted that he has had three
neetings in the last three days on the project. He said there
is alot of federal funding, and that there is a "DOD side and a
state side to the project.” He said sone of the equipnent from
the project will be on display during Northern Edge exercises in
Val dez on March 10-14, and sone of the communications equi pnent
will be tested then.

COWMM SSI ONER TANDESKE pointed out that right now, if there were
a catastrophic or natural disaster in Anchorage, the issue is
how the state troopers, the APD, the fire departnent, and the
"petrol disaster folks" would communicate when they are all on
different [radio] frequencies. He said this project is centered
through the Departnent of Admnistration (DOA), not DPS. He
indicated the issue of communication is always in a debriefing
after any mmjor event. He gave the exanple of troopers' having
a barricaded hom cide suspect and being restricted by the faulty
radios and cell phones that require the user to stand in a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 27, 2003



certain position. He enphasized, "It gets very, very difficult
to do operations when you can't conmuni cate.”

Nunber 2367

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nentioned a problem in Anchorage that
the police were trying to solve on their own. The officers
wanted to be able to carry cell phones so they could communi cate
directly with the comunity patrol, for exanple; the police
departnent was discouraging that, however, because it wanted
everything to go through its dispatchers. Representati ve
Gruenberg said having people conunicate with each other on the
scene is inportant and could save |ives. He said he hopes
Comm ssi oner Tandeske will take the lead in doing what he can
and listening to the officers at all |evels.

Nunmber 2282

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to a recent case when people
were getting shot in a house in Eagle River and the police
couldn't find the house; sonme of the houses aren't visibly
marked from the street. He said he brought up to the |ocal
assenbly that there should be a requirenent that every house
should be marked so that |aw enforcenent and energency vehicles
can see it; those in the conmmunity council had suggested houses
should be narked from the alleys as well. He said it was
brought to his attention that sonme |aw enforcenment people didn't
want their houses narked, however, for personal privacy reasons.
He said he thinks knowing where "the urgency” is would save
lives. He asked Conmi ssioner Tandeske to commrent.

Nunber 2205

COM SSI ONER TANDESKE, in regard to cell phones for police
officers, said he has found they are an "all-too-easy reason not
to look a conplainant in the eye." He said it's so inportant
when a person calls for service that soneone shows up to talk to
that person. Second, there are sone safety issues, and he told
the commttee that he cringes when he sees a police officer
"driving around with a cell phone to his ear.” He noted that
there are jurisdictions where that's illegal. He said, "I
certainly support the concept that we're able to talk to the
folks that are out there volunteering to help us do our jobs, as
long as we do it in an appropriate manner and set a good exanple
for the public that we serve."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- February 27, 2003



COM SSI ONER TANDESKE, in regard to "house marking," said it
certainly nmakes life easy. He related his experience in Pal ner
where not much was narked other than [along] the G enn H ghway
and the Parks Hi ghway. He said, "Part of a skill that one
|l earns in |aw enforcenment is how to find places under pressure,
in the dark, in bad weather, and 'third house, second right, big
rock in the yard,' whatever it is to get there." He stated his
hope that the state troopers never get to the point where they
rely on conputers so nuch that they can't [find a location] if
there is bad data in the conputer. He said, though, that he is
"for anything that nakes it easier to find them" and he told
Representative G uenberg that his point is well taken.

Number 2057

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ encouraged Conm ssioner Tandeske to do
anything he <can to nmake ALMR happen. He offered his
understanding that during the events of Septenber 11, 2001,
there was "a | arge problem between the New York police and fire
departnents. He said he would like to ensure that, in the event
of an energency, there are very clear hierarchies and chai ns of
command in place so that everyone knows who is in charge and who
makes the final decisions.

Number 1989

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH commented that the program that sends uniforned
troopers to the schools is very effective. He noted that his
children always cone hone and tal k about it.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said there is at |east one unsolved nurder in
Juneau and other wunsolved crines in other comunities. He
of fered his understanding that part of the problemis because of
a lack of adm ssible evidence to bring the crinme to prosecution.
He said another problem as he understands it, is a |lack of up-
to-date training on crine investigation techniques. He asked
whet her there is any ability for troopers and | ocal
jurisdictions to work together to get training so that crine
scene investigation can be done to bring cases to court, to
prosecute sone of the unsolved crines.

Number 1928

COWMWM SSI ONER TANDESKE reiterated his previous nention of the
"cold case group” that works on old cases. He advised the
commttee that DPS hit a very challenging time in the build-up
of the pipeline years. There was a large influx of new

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- February 27, 2003



enpl oyees; when they retired, the departnent lost a lot of
experi ence. "Just going to training classes doesn't fill that
void," he said. Sonme [retirees] work on a nonpermanent basis on
sone of the [cold] cases, which brings the experience back in.
There was also a gap in hiring for a while, and thus there are
many "junior troopers."

COW SSIONER TANDESKE said there is no substitute for case
experience, so the departnent is looking at sone innovative
ways, such as the cold case group, to address those issues. He

added, "I believe it's working, and you'll see sone good
t hi ngs." Regarding the DNA legislation, he stated, "I think
that [if] the right thing gets done, then | think you'll see
sone cases solved rather quickly."

Number 1796

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Commi ssioner Tandeske if he
thinks the use of cell phones during the operation of cars
shoul d be illegal.

COWM SSI ONER  TANDESKE said he thinks the people who are
enforcing laws and encouraging public safety should set an

exanple of doing "the safe things." He clarified that even
though the use of cell phones [while driving] nmay not be a
violation of regulations, he thinks it is sonething that |aw
enforcement needs to take the lead on, in terns of safety
i ssues. In further response, he confirmed that he plans to
institute a policy for his departnent that would not permt the
use of cell phones while operating [a vehicle]. He noted that
at the Prudhoe Bay oil fields, a person nust pull over to answer
a cell phone call. He said he is not confortable with having

state troopers driving around tal king on cell phones.
Number 1700

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH noted that rural conmmunities don't usually have
troopers, but do have VPSGCs. He asked if there would be a
problem in using the budget that would be used to finance the
trooper position, in a large rural area covering many vill ages,
for VPSGs instead, to make sure that "there is a presence in
t hose rural comunities.”

COWM SSI ONER TANDESKE responded that there would be a problemin
doing that, primarily because state troopers can go anywhere,
anytinme, and do anything w thout reservation; in contrast, VPSOs
aren't APSC-certified and [serve] as first responders for

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 27, 2003



anything from animal control to "whatever the particular
comunity wi shes of them™ but will never be in a position to
take the place of state troopers and what they can do. He said
when he gives up a state trooper from anywhere to fund a

resource that has inherent limtations built into it, then he is
|l osing all the way around. He explained that it doesn't matter
how many VPSGs exist; he wll still have to conmt state

troopers to support them
Number 1600

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH said this is a policy issue that will have to be
discussed in nore detail, because the rural comunities are
interesting in discussing it.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked Comm ssioner Tandeske what sort of
institutional nenorials the departnent has for officers killed
in the line of duty.

COM SSI ONER TANDESKE said there is a peace officers' nenorial
in front of the state crinme lab in Anchorage that covers all |aw
enforcenment in Al aska. He noted that there are places in the
comm ssioner's office in Juneau and in the headquarters [in
Anchorage] that commenorate those individuals.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH remarked that it is an inherently dangerous
prof ession that needs to be recognized by the public. He noted
that Adair-Kennedy Menorial Park [in Juneau] is naned after two
police officers killed in the line of duty.

COW SSI ONER TANDESKE noted that a friend of his was wounded in
t hat exchange as wel .

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said his final guestion for Comm ssioner
Tandeske was: "Why should the legislature confirm you to the
conmmi ssi oner position?"

Number 1489

COM SSI ONER TANDESKE responded that besides his previously
stated qualifications and philosophies, which he thinks are
absol utely appropriate for the challenges, he has a know edge of
and absolute commt to the organization. He said he grew up
with the departnent for virtually all of his adult life and
| oves it. Just as there is no substitute for experience, there
is also no substitute for caring about what one does and the
peopl e one works with. He told the conmittee that he also

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 27, 2003



brings a lot of energy and has a reputation within the |aw
enforcement comunity that allows himto work with agencies at
all 1levels. He concluded that he guesses the bottom line is
this: he is a guy whose track record says he gets things done.

Nunber 1429

CHAIR  WEYHRAUCH expressed appreci ation for Comm ssi oner
Tandeske's nove to Juneau. He posited that not only is it
inportant to be close to the governor, but also the legislature
appreciates the ability to call on the conm ssioner and have
that person present when the legislature is in session.

[Although no formal notion was nmade, the confirmation of
Comm ssi oner Tandeske was advanced from the House State Affairs
St andi ng Comm ttee.]

ADJ OQURNVENT

Nunber 1367

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
9:18 a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 27, 2003



